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TIAA international Holdings 2 Limited

Strategic Report for the Year Ended 31 December 2019

The Directors present their strategic report on TIAA International Holdings 2 Limited ("TIH 2" or the
"Company") tor the vear ended 31 December 2019.

Business Review

The Company is a wholly owned subsidiary of Nuveen Real Estate Global, LLC, a limited liability company
incorporated in the United States of America. The Company's parent changed its name on 4 Januarv 2019 from
TH Real Estate Global, LLC to Nuveen Real Estate Global, LLC.

TIH 2 was incorporated in the United Kingdom on 19 September 2613 by Teachers Insurance and Annuitv
Association (“TIAA™), the ultumate controlling partv of the Company at the Statement of Financial Position
date. to act as a holding company for TIAAs joint venture mvesiment in TEAA Henderson Reat Estate Limited
(“TH RE™). On 1 Apnl 2015 TIAA International Heldings 3 Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company, and TEAA International Holdings 1 Limited, a fellow subsidiary, acquired the remaining 40% holding
in TH RE held by Henderson Global Investors (Holdings) Limited resulting in TIAA owning 100% overall. On
3rd Apnl 2017 TH RE changed 1ts name to Nuveen Real Estate Limited (*"NRE™).

Throughout this report, reference 1s made to the ~“Group™~ which refers to TIH 2 and its subsidiary companies.

The Group’s consolidated revenue 1s primarnily derived from global real estate investment management tfrom the
underlving operating subsidiaries. The Directors do not envisage a change ol activilies in the foreseeable future.

At 31 December 2019 the Group's Assets Under Management (“AUM™) was £26.4bn (2018: £28. 5bn).

Principal risks and uncertainties

The Group has 1 nisk management framework n place to ensure that it meets 1ts objectives within acceptable
risk parameters. This framework is reviewed regularly so that new and emerging risks are identified early on.
The Group's culture embeds the management of risk at all levels within the organisation. The framework under
which 1t operates also ensures that the business 1s capable of mecting 1ts business objectives within 1ts risk
appetite and is subject to continuous review. The main risks the Group faces are market ligmdity, foreign
currency and credit, which are discussed further in note 4 to the financial statements.

Future developments

The UK departed the European Union on 31 January 2020. The terms of the departure have not vel been agreed
and the mmpact it will have on the UK financial services sector remains unclear. The Company anticipates a
morc challenging market for commercial property in the UK and will continue to measure strategic performance
alongside the Kev Performance Indicators highlighted below.
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TIAA International Holdings 2 Limited

Strategic Report for the Year Ended 31 December 2019

Our approach to Brexit
In preparing for the UK's exit from the European Union (Brexit), the Group has worked closely with our
external advisors to devclop a plan to cnsure we are able to operate without interruption regardless of the final
terms of the eventual exit.

Following the advice received, the Group established two new entities in Luxembourg to enable uninterrupted
trade post-Brexit. This was reguired on the assumption that, despite ongoing uncertainty, there will be a hard
Brexit, losing the ability for the Group to distribute funds from the UK into the EU and from managing EU
Altemative Investment Funds from the UK. The new entities include a European Alternative Investment Fund
Managers (AIFMs) that will manage the Alternative investment Funds (AIFs) originally managed in the UK,
and a European Markets in Financial Instruments Dhrective (MiFID) firm that would allow cross border
marketing (via a MiFID marketing passport) and the provision of MiFID services through newly established
German and Panish branches.

During the vear, we transitioned our AIF Contracts trom the UK AIFM (Nuveen Management AIFM Limited)
to Luxembourg AIFM (Nuveen Alternatives Europe Sarl). We also transferred our German Branch business
from UK MiFID parent (Nuveen Real Estate Management Limited) to Luxembourg MiFID parent (Nuveen
Asset Management Europe Sarl} and translerred our Danish Branch business trom UK MiF1D) parent (Nuveen
UK Limited) to Luxembourg MiFI[> parent (Nuveen Asset Management Furope Sarl).
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TIAA International Holdings 2 Limited

Strategic Report for the Year Ended 31 December 2019

Key Performance Indicators
The Group uscs the following kev performance indicators (KPIs) to assist in the understanding of the
development, performance ang position of the business:

1) Assets Under Management

During 2019, the Group continued to undertake the asset management for certain real estate investments of the
affiliates of the Company located in Europe and Asia.

At 31 December 2019 AUM is £26 4bn (Plan: £29.7bn) with the loss of the AusSuper mandate (£2.0bn) and
higher net outflows on HUKPATF (£0.2bn) driving the unfavourable variance.

i1) Cash Flow from Operations

The Group monitors cperating cash flows as a key element in understanding the performance and position of the
business. Management expects to continue to have positive cash flow from operations over the next 12 months.

i1y Operating Margin

The Group expects to see a gradual improvement in its operating margin in the long term. Since tncorporation
the margin has been increasing and is seen as a key metric for the Group.

Approved by the Board of Directors on 15 April 2020 and signed on its behalf by:

DocuSigned by
Ea{duu,t salLs

BABSBBBGBADRADG -« o oeeeeeres
M.LL Sales
Director
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TIAA International Holdings 2 Limited

Directors’ Report for the Year Ended 31 December 2019

The Directors present their report and the audited Group and Company f{inancial statements for the year ended
31 December 2019 which have been prepared under and comply with International Financial Reporting
Standards (“TFRS™) as adopted by the European Union.

Please refer to the Strategic Report on pages 2 to 3 for the activities and future developments of the Company
and a discussion of the principal risks and uncertainties. Ior financial nsk management refer to note 4.

Principal activities

The principal activity of the Company is that of a holding company. The Group has overseas branches in
Sweden, Spain, Luxembourg, Germany and Denmark which were established in the year. Further details on the
Group's approach to Brexit can be found on page 3 of the Stralegic report.

Results and Dividends
The profit for the vear ended 31 December 2019 amounted to £12,656.649 (2018: £9,893.229). The Directors do
not recommend the payment ot a dividend (2018: £nil).

Financial instruments
The Group and Company financial risk inanagement objectives and policies, including exposures to risks are
discussed in Capital resources and risk management, note 4 of these financial stalements.

Directors
The Directors, who held office during the vear ended 31 December 2019 and up to the date of signing the
financial statements were as follows:

G.E. Bnightman
M.LL Sales

Directors' third party and pension scheme indemnity provisions
NRE may indemnifv the Directors to the extent permitted by United Kingdom law. NRE may indemnify the
Directors against all costs, charges, losses, expenses and liabilities incurred:

1) in the actual or purported execution and/or discharge of his duties, or in relation to them; and

i) in relation to the Company’s (or any associated company’s) activities as trustee of an occupational pension
scheme (as defined in section 235(6) of the Companies Act 2006), including (in each case) any liability incurred
by him in defending any civil or criminal proceedings, in which judgement is given in his favour or in which he
is acquitted or the proceedings are otherwise disposed of without any finding or admission of any material
breach of duty on his part or in connection with any application which grants him, in his capacity as a relevant
officer, relief from lability for negligence, default, breach of duty or breach of trust in relation to the
Company s (or any assoctated company 's) affairs.

NRE may provide the Directors with funds to meet expenditure incurred or to be incurred by him in connection
with anv proceedings or application referred above.
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TIAA International Holdings 2 Limited
Directors' Report for the Year Ended 31 December 2019

Directors’ duties

The Directors of the Group must act in accordance with a predefined set of duties, as per S172 of the UK
Companies Act 2006. A director of a Company should act in good faith, which in turn, is most likely to promote
the success of the Company and benefit its stakeholders.

The Director must have regard to:

* The likely consequences of anv decision in the long term;

= The interests of the Company’s employees:

* The need to foster the Company’s business relationships with suppliers, customers and others,

* The impact of the Company s operations on the community and the environment;

=+ The desirability of the Company maintaining a reputation for high standards of business conduct, and:
* The need to act fairly as between members of the Company.

The following paragraphs summarise how the Directors” fulfil their duties:

Employees

The Company is commifted to its employ ces ensuring it attracts, retains and develops its people. The Company
promotes a collaborative and inclusive work environment that encourages diversity, growth and development
and rewards individual and team achievements. These attributes are embedded in the emplovee™s values which
helps guide behaviour and achieve strategic goals.

Community and the Environment

The Group ensures it acts sustainably by inlegrating environmental. social and corporate goals. There are kev
personnel dedicated to sustainability who ensure the business 1s well placed to pursue growth opportunities.
whilst minimising the risk of accelerated depreciation and early obsolescence within the Group’s asset portfolio.
The sustainability team also educate the wider Group employees and directors to guarantee the enviromment is at
the forefront of decision making.

Clients

The Directors enswre they have open dialogue with its clients allowing the communication to be etfective and
efficient. Clients are expecting mcreased transparency m the levels of mformation which the company tulfils to
ensure a range of products are flexible for investor’s needs.

Ultimate Parent

Nuveen is part of a wider group. therefore not only do the Director’s have to act in good faith tor the Companyv
bul the wider group. All of TIAA's directors ensure that they promote the success of the whole group and
educate Directors across the whole organisation.

Risk Management

The risk management, compliance and legal teams are essential elements to the business. These teams are
partners to the mvestment, product and distribution teams safeguarding decisions. The group maintains a
three-lines-of-defence model ensuring best practice:

» First line: Emplovees in the investment, product and distribution teams have a duty to supervise and follow
rigorous internal compliance guidelines:

= Second line: Risk Management and Compliance teamns with guidance from Legal, assisting in identifving and
nutigating risks:

» Third line: Internal audit function which provides information on the adequacy and effectiveness of the risk
management process.

As Directors, the intention is to act responsibly for all stakeholder groups to achieve desired long-tenm results.

Page ©
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TIAA International Holdings 2 Limited

Directors' Report for the Year Ended 31 December 2019

Independent Auditors

The auditors, PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, will be proposed for re-appointment in accordance with Section
485 of the Companies Act 2006. PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP have indicated their willingness to continue in
office.

Directors’ Confirmations
Each person who is Director at the time when this report is approved has confirmed that:

a) so tar as the Director is aware, there 1s no relevant audit information of which the Company’s auditors are
unaware. and

b} the Director has taken all the steps that he ought to have taken as a Director, including making appropriate
enquiries of the Company’s auditors for that purpose, in order to make him aware of any information needed by
the Compamy s anditors i connection with preparing their report and to establish that the Company s auditors
are aware of that information.

Going concern

The Company s business activities, together with the factors likely to affect its future development, performance
and position, its financial risk management objectives and its cxposure to cash flow risk are included in the
Strategic Report. The Directors have a reasonable expectation that the Company has adequate resources to
continue in operational existence for the foresceable future. The Company has adopted the going concern basis
of accounting in preparing its annual financial statements.

Post balance sheet events

The outbreak of the novel coronavirus (atso known as COVID 19} in many countries is rapidly evolving and the
socio-economic impact is unprecedented. 1t has been declared as a global pandemic and is having a major
impact on econemies and financial markets. The efficacy of government measures will materiallv influence the
length of economic disruption. but it is probable we will see a period of slow economic growth or even
recession.

However, there is unlikely to be a company that is completelv immune from the consequences cf the outbreak
and the Directors consider that the novel coronavirus presents increased uncertainty and risk with respect to the
Company's performance and tinancial results.

Management has modelled vanous going concemn scenarios to assess the potential impact on (he [uture financial
results of the Group.
To assess the potential impact of Covid-1Y, Management has:

*  Produced reforecasts which consider the effects of both long-term and short-term market trmeoil, linited
transactional activity and a reduction in Group AUM. The Group base case scenario involves a reassessment
of net flows and assumes that Real Estate valuations will experience the following reductions:

» Retail - 20%

+ Industrial - 0%
« Office - 10%

*  Housing - 5%
* Debt-0%

Potential cost savings have also been considered within the Group's variable cost basc. Such initiatives would
ensure that the underlving profitability of the group is maintained.
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TIAA International Holdings 2 Limited

Directors' Report for the Year Ended 31 December 2019

* Reassessed the Group’s Goodwill position by applving the latest base case reforecast (see above) to analvse
whether the carrving value of goodwill remains supported by Group profitability. From this analysis there is
still significant headroom of £80.0m. To recognise an impairment to Goodwill, the Group’s forecasted
profitability would have to tall by 38% per annum over the next 5 vears.

From assessing these impacts, Management believe there are no going concern issues but will ensure the
business continues to manage its cost base, and will work closely with our ultimate parent TIAA to ensure the
Group 1s able to manage any future external pressures.
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TIAA International Holdings 2 Limited

Statement of Directors' Responsibilities

The Directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report and the financial statements m accordance with
applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires the Directors to prepare linancial statements for each financial year. Under that law the
Directors have prepared the Group financial statements in accordance with Intemational Financial Reporting
Standards ("IFRSs") as issued by the Intemational Accounting Standards Board (IASB) and Company financial
statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (EFRSs) as adopted by the European
Union. Under company Iaw the Directors must not approve the financial stalements unless they are satisfied that
thev give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and Company and of the profit or loss of the
Group and Company for that period. In prepaning these financial statements, the Directors are required to:

» select suitable accounting policies and apply them consistently:

» slate whether applicable IFRSs as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) have been
followed for the Group financial statements and IFRSs as adopted by the Furopean Union have been
followed for the Company financial statements, subject to anv matenat departures disclosed and explained in
the financial statements;

* make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent, and

+ prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the
Group and Company will continue 1n business.

The Directors are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Group and Company and hence for taking
reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other wrregularities.

‘The Directors arc responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain
ihe Group and Company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position
of the Group and Company and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies
Act 2006,

The Financial Statements on pages [2 to 62 were approved by the Board of Directors on 13 April 2020 and
signed on its behali by:

DocuSigned by
l M(L.,aul, sales
2AB93DACHEDFADC

M.JL Sales
Darcctor
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Independent auditors’ report to the members of TIAA
International Holdings 2 Limited

Report on the audit of the financial statements

Opinion

In our apinion, TIAA International Holdings 2 Limited’s group financial statements and company financial statements (the
“financial statements™):

« give a true and fair view of the state of the group’s and of the company’s affairs as at 31 December 2019 and of the
group’s and the company’s profit and cash flows for the vear then ended;

»  have been properly prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted
by the Eurcpean Union; and

»  have becn prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

We have audited the financial statements, included within the Annual Report and Consolidated Financial Statements (the
“Annual Report™), which comprise: the consolidated and company statements of financial position as at 31 December 2019;
the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated and company statements of comprehensive income, the
consolidated and company statements of cash flows, and the consolidated and company statements of changes in equity for
the year then ended; and the notes to the financial statements, which include a description of the significant accounting
policies.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (*ISAs {UK)™ and applicable law.
Our responsibilities under ISAs (UK) are further described in the Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the financial
statements section of our report. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We remained independent of the group in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant ta our audit of the
financial statements in the UK, which includes the FRC’s Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled cur other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements.

Conclusions relating to going concern

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which ISAs (UK) require us to report to you
where:

e the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is not
appropriate; or

« the directors have not disclosed in the financial statements any identified material uncertainties that may cast
significant doubl about the group's and company’s ability to continue to adopt the going concern basis of
accounting for a period of at least twelve months from the date when the financial statements are authorised for
issue.

However, because not all future events or conditions can be predicted, this statement is not a guarantee as to the group's
and company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

Reporting on other information

The other information comprises all of the information in the Annual Report other than the financial statements and our
auditors’ report thereon. The directors are responsibie for the other information. Our opinion on the financial statements
does not cover the other information and, accordingly, we do not express an audit opinicn or, except to the extent otherwise
explicitly stated in this report, any form of assurance thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or cur knowledge obtained
in the audit, or ctherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify an apparent material inconsistency or material
misstaternent, we are required to perform procedures to conclude whether there is a material misstatement of the financial
statements or a material misstatement of the other information. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report
based on these responsibilities.

With respect to the Strategic Report and Directors’ Report, we also considered whether the disclosures required by the UK
Companies Act 2006 have been included.
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Based on the responsibilities described above and our work undertaken in the course of the audit, ISAs (UK) require us also
to report certain opinions and matters as described below,

Strategic Report and Directors’ Report

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit, the information given in the Strategic Report and
Directors’ Report for the year ended 31 December 2019 is consistent with the financial statements and has been prepared in
accordance with applicable legal requirements.

in light of the knowledge and understanding of the group and company and their environment obtained in the course of the
audit, we did not identify any material misstatements in the Strategic Report and Directors’ Report.

Responsibilities for the financial statements and the audit
Responsihilities of the directors for the financial statements

As explained more fully in the Statement of Directors' Responsibilities set out on page 9, the directors are responsible for
the preparation of the financial statements in accordance with the applicable framework and for being satisfied that they
give a true and fair view. The directors are also responsible for such internal control as they determine is necessary to enable
the preparation of financial stalements that are free from material misstaternent, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the group’s and the company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting uniess the directors either intend to liquidate the group or the company or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditors responsihbilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that includes our opinion. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considercd
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these financial statements.

A furlher description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the FRC’s website at:
www, [re.org.uk /auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditors’ report.

{lse of this report

This reporl, including the opinions, has been prepared for and only for the company’s members as a body in accordance
with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006 and for no other purpose. We do not, in giving these opinions, accept
or assume responsibility for any other purpose or to any other person to whom this reporl is shown or into whose hands it
may come save where expressly agreed by our prior consent in writing.

Other required reporting

Companies Act 20006 exception reporting
{Inder the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to vou if, in our opinion:
* we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit; or

« adequate accounting records have not been kept by the company, or reterns adequate for our audit have not been
received from branches not visited by us; or

» certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or
+  the company financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns.

We have no exceptions to report arising from Lhis responsibility.

Thomas Norrie {Senior Statutory Auditor)

for and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors
London

15 April 2020
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TIAA International Holdings 2 Limited

Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss for the Year Ended 31 December 2019

2019 2018
Note(s) £ £

Revenue 5 101,259,766 100,433 200
Administrative expenses 6 (87,840,443) (90,178 687)
Other operating income 3,949,695 2,316,227
Operating profit 17,369,016 12,590,740
Finance income 16 60,216 49157
Finance costs 11 (317,550) (204,708)
Net finance cost (257.334) (135,551
Share of {loss)/protit of equity accounted investees 17 (1,372) 19,748
Profit before tax 17,110,310 12,454,937
[ncome tax expense 12 (4,453.661) (2,561,708)
Profit for the vear 12,656,649 9893229
Profit attributable to:
Owrers of the company 11,971,004 9.625259
Non-controlling interests 683,645 267,970

12,656,649 9,893,229

The above results were denved from continuing operations.

The above Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes,

The notes on pages 22 1o 63 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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TIAA International Holdings 2 Limited

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income for the Year Ended 31 December

2019

Profit for the vear

Items that may be reclassified subsequenty to profit or loss
Cwrrency translation ditYerences

Total comprehensive mcome for the vear

Total comprehensive income attributable to:
Owners of the company
Non-controlling interests

The notes on pages 22 to 63 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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2019 2018
£ £
12,656,649 9,893,229
(982.071) 298,102
11,674,578 10,191,331
11,039,062 9,916,161
615,516 275,170
11,674,578 10,191,331
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TIAA Internatienal Holdings 2 Limited

Company Statement of Comprehensive Income for the Year Ended 31 December 2019

Administrative expenses

Operating loss

Other income
Finance costs

Profit/(loss) before tax

Profit/(loss) and total comprehensive income/(expense) for the vear

2019 2018
£ £
(204.252) (153,803)
(204,252) (153.803)
1,480,346 .
(666) (767)
1,275,428 (154,570)
1275,428 (1545703

The notes on pages 22 to 63 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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TIAA International Holdings 2 Limited

(Registration number: 08698172)
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position as at 31 December 2019

Assets

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment
Right-of-use assets

Intangible assets

Investments in associates
Other investments

‘Trade and other receivables
Deterred tax assets

Current assets

Trade and other receivables
Current tax asset

Cash and cash equivalents

Total assets
Equity and liabilities

Equity

Called up share capital
Share premitan
Retained earnings

Total equity attributable to owners of the company

Non-controlling interests
Total shareholders' funds

Non-current liabilities
Lease liabilities

Trade and other payables
Provisions

The notes on pages 22 (o 63 form an integral part of these linancial statements.
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Note

14
15
16
17
i8
19
20

19

21

22
23

25

26
27

31 December 31 December
2019 2018
£ £
2.584 485 1,308,968
18,399,955 -
137,852,997 141,115.677
131,726 136.698
759656 630,876
138,051 145,849
276,770 986,347
160,143,640 144,324 413
54,535,547 41,709,772
31,961 4,209
79.968.750 76,020,884
134,536,258 117,734,925
294,679,898 262,059,340
600 600
202,162,796 202,162.796
23,876,503 14,660,033
226,039,899 216823429
(523,642) (311.872)

225,516,257 216,511,557
16,796,804 -
13,344,526 7,922,943

- 1,239,476

30,141,330 9,162,419
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TIAA International Holdings 2 Limited

(Registration number: 08698172)
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position as at 31 December 2019

31 December 31 December

2019 208
Note £ £

Current liabilities
Trade and other pavables 26 34,563,211 35,395,684
Lease habilities 15 3,375,828 -
Current tax liability 1,061 231 964,039
Provisions 27 22,041 25,641

39,022,311 36,385 364
Total liabilities 69,163,641 45,547,783
Total equity and liabilities 294,679,898 262,059,340

The financial statements on pages 12 to 62 are approved by the Board of Directors on 15 Apnl 2020 and signed
on its behalf by:

DocuSigned by:
Gidwui salrs

B AARGIDBGBEDFANG - - -
M.)L Sales
Director

The notes on pages 22 to 63 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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TIAA International Holdings 2 Limited

(Registration number: 08698172)
Company Statement of Financial Position as at 31 December 2019

31 December 31 December

2019 2018

Note £ £
Assels
Non-current assets
Investments in subsidiaries 17 202,163,396 202,163 396
Total non-current assets 202,163,396 202,163,396
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalenis 21 933,937 1,088,695
Total assets 203,097,333 203,252,091
Equity and liabifities
Equity
Called up share capital 22 600 600
Share premium 23 202,162,796 202.162.796
Retained earnings/{accumulated losses) 788,185 (487243}
Totzl shareholders' funds 202,951,581 201.676.153
Current liabilities
Trade and other pavables 26 145,752 1,575,038
Total current liabilities 145752 1,575,938
Total equity and liabilities 203,097,333 203252 091

The financial stalements on pages 12 to 62 are approved by the Board of Directors on 15 April 2020 and signed
on its behalf by:

DocuSigned by:
Gic&mL sales

M.IL Sales
Director

The notes on pages 22 to 63 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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TIAA International Holdings 2 Limited

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity for the Year Ended 31 December 2019

Total equity
attributable to Non- Total
Called up share Retained owners of the controlling shareholders’
capital Share premium earnings company interests funds
£ £ £ £ £ £

Balance at 1 January 2018 600 202,162,796 4,743 872 206,907,268 (444.376) 206,462,892
Profit for the vear - - 9,625,259 9,625,259 267,970 0,893,229
Other comprehensive expense - - 290,902 290,902 7,200 298,102
Total comprehensive income for 2018 - - 9,916,161 9.916,161 275,170 10,191 331
Dividends paid - - - - (142 666) {142 666)
Balance as at 31 December 2018 600 202,162,796 14,660,033 216,823 429 Au_ rw‘wwv 216,511,557
At t Janiary 2019 600 202,162,796 14,660,033 216,823,429 (311.872) 216,511,557
*Impact of change in accounting standards - IFRS 16 - - (1,611,113 (1,611,113} - (1,611,113)
Adjusted balance at 1 January 2019 600 202,162,796 13,048,920 215212316 (311,872} 214,900 444
Profit for the year - - 11,971,004 11,971,004 685,645 12,656,649
Other compreiensive expense - - (911,942) (911,942) (70,129 (982,071)
Total comprehensive income - - 11059062 E1,059,062 615,516 11,674,578
Dividends - - - - (215.592) (215,592}
Decrease in non-controlling interest in subsidiarics - - (231,479} (231.479) (611,694) (843,173)
Balance as at 31 December 2019 600 202,162,796 23,876,503 226,039,899 (523.642) 225,516.257

¥The Group has initially applied IFRS 16 at 1 January 2019, using the modified retrospective approach. Under this approach, comparative information is not restated and the
cumulative effect of initially applving 1FRS 16 is recognised in retained earnings at the date of initial application,

The notes on pages 22 to 63 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Balance at 1 January 2018
Loss for the year

Total comprehensive expense

Balance as at 31 December 2018
Profit for the vear

Total comprehensive income

Balance as at 31 December 2019

TIAA International Holdings 2 Limited

Company Statement of Changes in Equity for the Year Ended 31 December 2019

(Accumulated
losses)/ Total
Called up share Retained sharcholders'
capital Share premium earnings funds
£ £ £ £
600 202,162,796 (332,673) 201,830,723
- - {154,570 (154,570
- - (154,570) (154,570)
600 202,162,796 (487,243) 201,676,153
- - 1,275,428 1,275,428
- - 1,275,428 1,275,428

600 202,162,796

788,185 202,951,581

The notes on pages 22 10 63 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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TIAA International Holdings 2 Limited

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the Year Ended 31 December 2619

Note(s)
Cash flows from operating activities

Profit before tax

Adjustments for:

Depreciation and amortisation 6
T.oss on disposal of property plant and equipment 6
Foreign exchange loss

Net finance cost 10, 11
Share of loss/(profit) of investments accounted for using the

equity method

Adjustments on transfer of right-of-use assets and cancellation of

lease

Change in operating assets and liabilities:

Increase in trade and other receivables 19
Increase in trade and other payables 26
(Decrease)increase m provisions 27

Cash generated from operations
Income taxes paid
Interest paid

Net cash fiow from operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities

Interest received 10
Purchases of property, plant and equipment 14
Purchases of other mvestments 17

Acquisition of subsidiaries
Net cash flows from investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities
Lease liabilitv pavments

Dividends paid

Transactions with non-controlling interests

Net cash flows from financing activities 25
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January

Effect of exchange rate fluctuations on cash held

Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December 21

The notes on pages 22 to 63 form an mtegral part of these financial statements.
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2019 2018
£ £
17.110,310 12.454.937
8250043 4.547.923
10,542 41,4553
1.460.030 369,738
257334 155.551
1372 (19.748)
(328.915) -
26,760,716 17,549,856
(13,109,396) (8.363.117)
4,576,671 10,324,340
(1234,731) 317.934
16,993,260 19,829,013
(3,616.971) (1,999.607)
(302,462) (204,708)
13,073,827 17.624.698
60,216 49,157
(2.461,333) (675,804)
(134,684) (625,886)
(23,885) -
(2,559,686) (1.252,333)
(3,528,305) -
(215,592) (142,666}
(843,173) -
(4.587.070) (142.666)
5,927,071 16.229.499
76,020,884 59,842,691
(1,979.205) (51,306)
79,968,750 76,020,884
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TIAA international Holdings 2 Limited

Company Statement of Cash Flows for the Year Ended 31 December 2019

2019 2018
Note £ £

Cash flows from operating activities

Profit/(loss) before tax 1,275 428 (134,570}
Decrease in trade and other receivables 19 - 1,243,206
Decrease n trade and other payables 26 (1,430,186) {14,360)
Net cash flow from operating activities {154,758) 1074276
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents (154.758) 1,074.276
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January 1,088,695 14,419
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December 933,937 1,088,695

The notes on pages 22 to 63 form an integral part of these {inancial statements.
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TIAA International Holdings 2 Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2019

1  General information

These consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of TIAA Intermational Holdings 2
Limited (the “Company ™} and its subsidianes (together the “Group™).

The principal activity of the Group is the provision of real estate asset management services, market research
and portfolio management advice.

The prineipal activity of the Company is that of a holding company.

The Company is incorporated and domiciled in the United Kingdom. The address of its registered office is:
150 Aldersgate Street

London

EC1A 4AB

2 Basis of preparation and sigaificant accounting policies

Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Intemational Financial Reporting Standards
("IFRS™} as adopted bv the European Union and IFRS Interpretations Committee (“IFRS IC™) and applied in
accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2006 applicable to companies reporting under IFRS.

The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis under the histerical cost convention,
except for the measurement at fair value of financial instrwments, as sct out in the accounting policy below.

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
amounts reported tor asscts and liabilitics as at the reporting date and the amounts reported for revenues and
expenses during the period. The nature of estimates means that actual outcomes could differ from thosc
estimates.

Going concern

The Group meets its day-to-dav working capital requirements through regular cash flows from Group activities.
The Directors consider that the Group has adequate financial resources to continue in operational existence in
the foreseeable future. The Group therefore continues w adopt the going concern basis in preparing its financial
statements,

Summary of significant accounting policics and key accounting estimates

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below.
These policies have been consistentlv applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.
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TIAA International Holdings 2 Limited

Netes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2019

New standards, amendments and IFRIC interpretations
IFRS 16 is a new accounting standard for the year ended 31 December 2019. All accounting policies were
updated to be in accordance with the updated accounting standards.

The standard became applicable from 1 January 2019 and this standard has a material impact on the Group.

The Group has adopted IFRS 16 using the modified retrospective approach and therefore has not restated
comparative amounts for the vear prior to first adoption and has adjusted the opening Statement of Financial
Position on 1 January 2019.

Details of the change in the Group's accounting policy in respect of lease accounting and an analvsis of the
tmpact of adopting IFRS 16 are set out in note 13.

New standards, interpretations and amendments not vet effective
There are no newly issued but not vet effective standards, interpretations and amendments which have not been
applied in these financial statemnents.

Changes in accounting policy

There are no new standards, interpretations and amendmenis which are effective for periods beginning afler 1
Jannary 2019 which have not been adopted early and are expected to have a material effect on the financial
statements.

Consolidation

Subsicharies are all entities (including structured entities) over which the Group has control. The Group controls
an entity when the Group is exposed to, or has fghts to, vanable returns from its involvement with the entity
and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the entity. Subsidiaries are fullv consolidated
from the date on which conirol is transferred to the Group. Theyv are deconsolidated from the date that control
ceases.

The Group re-assesses whether or not it controls an entity if facts and circumstances indicate that there are
changes to one or more of the elements of control, on an annual basis.

The acquisition method of accounting 1s used by the Group when it undertakes a business combination. In the
Statement of Financial Position, the acquirer's identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities are mitially
recognised at their tair values at the acquisition date.

The consolidated financial statements are based on the financial statements of the individual subsidiaries drawn
up using the standard Group accounting policies. Accounting policies apphed by individual subsidiaries have
been revised where necessary to ensure consistency with Group policies for consolidation purposes.

All intra-group transactions and balances between Group entities are eliminated on consolidation.
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TIAA International Holdings 2 Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2019

Foreign currencies

* Functional and presentation currency

[tems included i the financial statements of each of the Group’s subsidiaries are measured using the currency of
the primary econcmic environment in which the entity operates (the “functional currency™). The consolidated
financial statements are presented in British Pounds, which is the Company’s functional currency and the
Group’s presentation Currency.

« Transactions and balances

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into British Pounds at the rate prevailing on the date of the
transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rate of
exchange prevailing at the end of the reporting pertod.

Non-monetary assets and habilities denominated 1n foreign currencies are not retranslated at the end of the
reporting period and are measured at historical cost (translated using the exchange rates on the transaction date),
except for nen-monetary items carried at fair value, which are translated at the rates prevailing at the date when
the fair value was determined. Gains and losses arising on translation are recognised in profit or loss.

» Group comparies

The results and financial pesition of the Group entities (none of which has a currency of a hyperinflationarv
economy) that have a functional currency different from the presentation currency are translated into the
presentation currency on consolidation as follows:

(1) assets and liabilities for each Statement of Financial Position are translated at the closing rate at the date of
that Statement of Financial Position;

(ii) income and expenses are translated at the rate on the date of the transaction; and

(iii) all resulting exchange differences are recognised 1 other comprehensive income to the translation reserve.

On the disposal of a foreign operatton (that is, a disposal of the Group’s entire interest in a foreign operation, or
a disposal involving loss of control over a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation) all of the exchange
differences accumulated in equity in respect of that operation attributable to the equity holders of the company
are reclassified to profit or loss.

Goodwill and fair value adjustinents arising on the acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets and
liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at the closing rate. Exchange differences arising are recognised in
other comprehensive mcome.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, and represents amounts
receivable for services provided, stated net of value added taxes. The Group recogmises revenue when the
amount of the revenue can be reliably measured, when it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to
the entitv, and when specific criteria have been met for each of the Group’s activities, as described below. The
Group bases its estimate of return on historical results, taking into consideration the type of customer, the type
of transaction and the specifics of each arrangement.

* Fee income

Fee income includes management fees, advisory fees, transaction fees, development fees and performance fees
stated net of rebates. Management fees, transaction fees, development fees and advisory fees are recognised in
the accounting period in which the associated investment management or transaction services are provided.
Performance fees are recognised when the prescribed performance hurdles are achieved and it i1s certain that a
tee will crystallise as a result.

* Other income
Other income includes income recognised for services provided 1o the associates. Other mcome 1s recognised
the accounting period m which the associated services are provided.
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TIAA International Holdings 2 Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2019

Investments in associates

[nvestments in associates are those over which the Group has significant mfluence but not control or jomnt
control. These are accounted for using the equity method of accounting. Significant influence 1s considered to be
participation in the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee and is usually evidenced when the
Group owns between 20% and 50% of that company’s voting rights.

Investments in associated entities are mtiallv recorded at cost and the carrving amount is increased or decreased
to recognise the Group’s share of the profits or losses of the associated entity after acquisition. At the date of
acquisition any excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group’s share of the fair values of the identifiable net
assets of the associated entitv is recognised as goodwill. The carrying amount of these investments is reduced to
recognise any impairment of the value of the individual investment. If the Group’s share of losses exceeds its
interest in an associated entity the carrving value of that investment is reduced to nil and the recognition of anv
further losses is discontinued unless the Group has an obligation to make further funding contributions to that
associated entity.

Where a Group entitv has transactions with an associated entity of the Group, unrealised profits and losses are
eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interest in the relevant associated entity. Accounting policies of
associated entities have been changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the
Group.

Where there is a disposal of an investment in an associated entity, the carrving value of the investment held on
the Statement of Financial Position at the date of disposal is removed and offset against the consideration
received for that investment, with the net profit or loss on disposal being recognised in the consolidated
Statement of Profit or Loss.

Interest income and expense

Interest income and expense are recognised within finance income and finance costs in the Statement of Profit
or Loss using the effective interest rate method, except for borrowing costs relating to qualifying assets, which
are capitalised as part of the cost of that assel. The Group has chosen to capitalise borrowing costs on all
qualifving assets irrespective of whether they are measured at fair value or not.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset or a financial
hability and of allocating the interest mncome or interest expense over the relevant period. The effective interest
rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts throughout the expected life of
the financial instrument, or a shorter period where appropriate, to the net carrving amount of the financial asset
or financial liability. When calculating the effective interest rate, the Group estimates cash flows considering all
contraciual tenms of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment options) but does not consider future
credit losses. The calculation includes all fees paid or received between parties to the contract that are an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and all other premiums or discounts.

Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment (“PPE™) are initiallv recognised at acquisition cost, defined as the aggregate
amount paid and the fair value of any other consideration given to acquire the asset, including any costs directly
attributable to bringing the assets to the location and condition necessary for them to be capable of operating in
the manner intended by management. Assets are subsequently stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
any recognised impairmment loss.
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TIAA International Holdings 2 Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2019

Depreciation
Depreciation s provided at rates calculated to write off the cost, less estimated residual value, based on prices
prevailing at the end of the reporting period, of each asset over its expected useful life as follows:

Asset class Depreciation method and rate
Leasehold improvements over the period of the lease
Fumiture and fixtures straight line basis over 3 - 5 years
Oftice equipment straight line basis over 3 - 8 years
Computer hardware straight line basis over 3 years
Computer software straight hine basis over 3 vears

Right of use assels straight line basis over the shorter of
& estimated life or lease term

The carrving values of property, plant and equipment are reviewed for impairment when it becomes apparent

that the carrving value may not be recoverable, and in such circumstances the assets are written down

immediately to their recoverable amount.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benelits
are expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. The gain or loss arising on disposal or retirement of an
asset is determined as the difference between the disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and 1s
mcluded in the Statement of Profit or Loss.

Intangible assets

= Goodwill on business combinations

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of a business combination over the total acquisition date fair value of
the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent assets acquired.

Cost comprises the fair value of the assets given, liabilities assumed and equity instruments issued, plus the
amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree plus, if the business combination is achieved in stages,
the fair value of the existing equity interest in the acquiree. Direct costs of acquisition are recogmised
immediately as an expense.

Goodwill arising on a business coinbination is capitalised as an intangible asset with any impaimment in carrving
value being charged to the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income. When the fair value of the
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities exceed the fair value of the consideration paid, the excess
15 credited in full to the consolidated statement of comprehensive income on the acquisition date.

Goodwill on business combinations is determined to have an indefinite useful life and is not subject to
amortisation.

Investment management contracts
Investment management contracts have been identified as a separately identifiable intangible assel and are
recognised at fair value, calculated by applying a discounted cash flow method to future recurring revenue
streams arising from the contracts. The investment management contracts have a finite useful life and are carried
at cost less accumulated amortisation.

Asset class Amortisation method and rate
Open-ended mvestment management contracts straight line basis over 15 vears
Closed-ended investment management contracts over the period of the contract
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TIAA International Holdings 2 Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2019

Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life - for example, goodwill - are not subject to amortisation and are tested
annually for mmpawment, or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate a potential
impairment. Assets that are subject to depreciation or amortisation are reviewed for impairment whencver
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment
loss 1s recogmsed for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and value in vse. The fair value is
based on forecasts approved by the board, extrapolated for expected future growth rates and discounted at a risk
adjusted discount rate based on the Groups weighted average cost of capital. For the purposes of assessing
impatrment, assels are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows.
Non-financial assets other than goodwill that suffered impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the
impaiment at each reporting date. Impairment losses on goodwill are not reversed.

Financial Instruments

* Recognition and initial measurement

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised on the Group’s balance sheet when the Group has
become a party to the contractual obligations of the financial instrument. The Group determines the
classification of its financial instruments at initial recognition in accordance with the catepories outlined below
and re-evaluates this designation at each reporting period end. When financial insiruments are recognised
initially, they are measured at fair value, being the transaction price plus, in the case of financial assets and
financial liabilities not at fair value through the Statement of Profit or Loss, directly attribotable transactien
costs.

* Financial assets

All financial assets are subject (o review for impairment at least at each reporting date to identify whether there
is anv objective evidence that a financial asset is impaired. Different criteria 1o determine impairment are
applied for each category of fMinancial assets, which are described below. All income and expenses relating to
financial assets that are recognised in Statement of Profit or Loss are presented within finance costs, finance
income or other financial items, except for impairment of trade receivables which is presented within expenses.

« Financial Labilities

The Group’s financial liabilities mclude trade and other pavables. Financial liabilities are measured
subsequently at amortised cost using the effective interest method, except for financial liabilities held for trading
or designated at fair value through the Profit and Loss account. that are carried subsequently at fair value with
gains or losses recognised in the Statement of Profit or Loss.

* Derecognition

‘The Group derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flow from the asset expire, or it
transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows on the financial asset in & transaction in which
substantiallv all the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred. Any interest in
transferred {inancial assets that is created or retained by the Group is recognised as a separate asset or liability.
The Group derecognises a financial hability when its contractual obligations are extinguished, discharged or
cancelled or have expired.

* Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation, as a result of past
events, for which it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation, and
& reliable estimate can be made of the obligation.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures expected to be required to settle the obligation

using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the nisk specific to
the obligation. The increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as interest expense.
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TIAA International Holdings 2 Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2019

Other investments

Other investments comprise of equity investments that do not have fixed maturities and fixed or determinable
payments, and management intends to hold them for the medium to long-term. Other investments are measured
at fair value through the Statement of Profit of Loss.

Other investments are presented as non-curent assets unless they mature, or management intends to dispose of
them within 12 months of the end of the reporting period.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in hand and at bank.

Trade receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for services performed in the ordinary course of business. 1f
collection is expected in one year or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the business if longer), they are
classified as cument assets. If not, they are presented as non-current assets.

Trade receivables are recognised initially at the transaction price. They are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method, less provision for impairment. A provision for the impairment of trade
receivables is established when there is objective evidence that the group will not be able to collect all amounts
due according to the original terms of the receivables.

The Group applies the IFRS 9 simplified approach to measuring expected credit losses which uses a lifetime
expected loss allowance for all trade receivables. To measure the expected credit losses, trade receivables have
been grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics and the days past due.

Prepayments
Prepavments are carried at cost less any accumulated impairment losses.

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Equity instruments are measured at the fair value of the cash or other
resources received or receivable, net of the direct costs of issuing the equity instruments. If pavment is deferred
and the time value of meney is material, the initial measurement is on a present vatue basis.

Taxation

Tax is recognised inn the Statement of Profit or Loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised
directly in other comprehensive income or equity - in which case, the tax is also recognised in other
comprehensive mcome or equity.

The cwrent income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the
date of the Statement of Financial Position in the countries where the Company operales. Management
periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation
is subject to interpretation, and establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be
paid to the tax authonties.
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TIAA International Holdings 2 Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2019

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on temporary differences arising between the
tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial statements. However,
deferred income tax is net accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or ligbility in a
transaction other than a business combination that at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting nor
taxable profit nor loss. Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or
substantially enacted by the date of the Statement of Financial Position and are expected to apply when the
related deferred mcome tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is setiled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary differences arising on investments in subsidiaries, except where
the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference is controlled by the Company and it is probable that the
temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there ts a legally enforceable right to offset current tax
assets against current tax labilities and when the deferred income taxes asseis and liabilities relate to income
taxes levied by the same taxation authorty on either the same taxable entity or different taxable entities where
there is an intention to seftle the balances on a net basis.

Employee benefits
The Group operates varicus employment schemes, including both defined contribution pension plans and
medical plans.

Defined contribuiion pension obligation

A defined contribution plan is a pension plan under which the Group pays fixed contnibutions. The Group has no
legal or constructive obligations to pay further contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient assets to pay all
employees the benefits relating to employee service in the current and prior periods.

For defined contribution plans, the Group pavs contributions to publicly or privately administered pension
insurance plans on & mandatory, contractual or voluntary basis. The Group has no further payment obligations
once the contributions have been paid. The contributions are recognised as an employee benefit expense when
thev are due. Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in
the future pavments is available.

Long term incentive plan

The Group has accrued for long-term cash settled deferred compensation which is determined by an estimate of
the value of the expected fiture payments. Actual long-term cash settled deferred compensation could vary from
those estimates.

The total expense is recognised over the vesting period, which is the period over which all of the specified
vesting conditions are to be satistied.

At the end of each reporting period the Group revises its estimates of the benefit that is expected to vest. It
recognises the impact of the revision to original estimate, if anv, in the Statement of Profit of Loss.

Other expenses
Expenses include legal, accounting, anditing and other fees. They are recognised in the Conselidated Statement
of Profit of Loss in the period in which they are incurred (on an accruals basis).
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TIAA International Holdings 2 Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2019

Leases
The Group leases various assets, comprising property, plant, equipment.

The determination whether an arrangement is, ot contains, a lease is based on whether the contract conveys a
right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

The tollowing sets out the Group’s lease accounting policy for all leases with the exception of leases with a low
value and term of 12 months or less for which/where we have taken the exemption under the standard. These are
expensed to the Statement of Profit or Loss as incurred.

At the inception of the lease, the Group recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability. A right-of-use asset
is capitalised in the Statement of Financial Position at cost, which comprises the present value of minimum lease
pavments determined at the inception of the lease. A lease liabilitv of equivalent value is also recognised.
Right-of-use assets are depreciated using the straight line method over the shorter of estinated life or the lease
term.

Depreciation 1s included within the line item administrative expenses in the Statement of Profit or Loss.

Under IFRS 16 the right-of-use assets will be tested for impairment in accerdance with 1AS 36 “Impairment of
Assets”. This will replace the previous requirement to recognise a provision for an onerous iease. The Group has
elected to apply the exemption to treat existing onerous leases as mnpairments on adoption.

The corresponding lease liability is included on the Statement of Financial Position as a lease liabilitv. The lease
liability is measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method. Lease payments are apportioned
between a finance charge and a reduction of the lease liability based on the constant interest rate applied to the
remaining balance of the liability. Interest expense is included within the line item net finance costs in the
Statement of Profit or Loss.

The lease payments comprise fixed pavments and variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate,
initially measured using the minimum index or rate at inception date. The payments also include any lease
incentives and any penalty pavments for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the lessee exercising that
option.

The lease term determined comprises the non-cancellable period of the lease contract. Periods covered by an
option to extend the lease are included if the Group has reasonable certainty that the option will be exercised and
periods covered by the option to termmate are included if it is reasonably certain that this will not be exercised.

The lease hability is subsequently remeasured (with a corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use asset)
when there is a change in future lease payments due to a renegotiation or market rent review, a change of an
index or rate or a reassessment of the lease term.

The Group has made judgements in adopting [FRS 16 such as; determining contracts in scope for IFRS 16,
detenmining the interest rate used for discounting of future cash flows, and the lease term.

Dividend income
Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive payment is established.

Dividend distributions
Dividend distribution to the company’s sharcholders is recognised as a liability in the company’s financial
statements in the period in which the dividends are approved by the company’s shareholders.
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3 Critical accounting estimates

Estimates are continualy evaluated and are based on historical experience as adjusted for current market
conditions and other factors.

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

Management makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting estimates will,
by definition, seldom equal the related actual results. Estimates are continually evaluated and are based on
historical experience and other factors, including expectations of tuture events that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances. The estimates that have a significant nisk of causing material adjustment to the camrying
amounts of assets and Habilities within the next financial vear are outlined below.

Useful econemic lives of property, plant and equipment and investment management contracts

The depreciation charge for property, plant and equipment and the amortisation charge for investment
management contracts are sensitive to changes in the estimated useful economic lives and residual value of the
assets. The useful economic lives and residual values are re-assessed annually in line with the property, plant
and equipment and intangible assets accounting policy. They are amended when necessary to reflect current
estimates, based on technological advancement, future investments, economic utilisation and the physical
condition of the assets. Investment management contracts are amended where necessary to reflect the current
circumstances of the underlving contracts.

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in numerous jurisdictions. Significant estimates are required in
determining the worldwide provision for income taxes. There are many transactions and calculations for which
the ultimate tax determination is uncertain. The Group recognises liabililies based on estimates of whether
additional taxes will be due. Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different from the amounts that
were initially recorded, such differences will impact the current tax and deferred tax provisions.

The deferred tax assets recognised have been based on future profitability assumptions over a five year horizon.
In the event of changes to these profitability assumptions the tax assets recognised may be adjusted.

Deferred compensation scheme
The Group has accrued for a long-term deferred compensation scheme which is determined by an estimate of
the value of the expected future pavments. Actual outcomes could vary from those estimates.

Development fees

Development fees are recognised throughout the period in which development management services are
provided. on the basis of the amount of work completed in the period. This requires reasonable estimates and
judgements to be made. Shounld any over or inder-estimate be made, fees in future periods would be adjusted to
reflect this. Total development and development performance fees recognised during the vear amounted to
£3,595,641 (2018: £3,620,371).

Investments in subsidiaries
As noted in the accounting policies above, investments in subsidiaries are held at cost. Management reviews the
investment at each period end for any signs of impairment.
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Impairment of intangible assets

Intangible assets are tested for impairment in line with the policy described in note 2 to these financial
statements. When assessing mmpairment of intangibles, management considers factors including the long term
growth rate and discount rates applied, and historical experience. Any goodwill impaimment is recognised
immediately as an expense and is not subsequently reversed.

Impairment of trade and other receivables

‘The Group makes an estimate of the recoverable value of trade and other receivables. When assessing
impairment of trade and other receivables, management considers factors including the credit rating of the
receivable, the ageing profile of receivables and historical experience. The Group applies the IFRS ¢ simplified
approach to measuring expecied credit losses which uses a lifetime expected loss allowance for all trade
receivables. In the prior vear, the impairment of trade receivables was assessed based on the incurred loss
model. Individual receivables which were known to be uncollectible were written off by reducing the carrving
amount directly.

4 Capital resources and risk management

Group and company

Management of capital

The objectives mherent 1 the capital management policy of the Group are:

« To mainiain a strong capital base,

« To meet regulatory requirements at all times in all jurisdictions in which the Group operates.
» To ensure that the Group can continue as a going concern: and

« To provide an adequate returmn to shareholders

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

Management view the following as the capital of the Company and Group:
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31 December 31 December
2019 2018
£ £
Group
Called up share capital 600 600
Share premium 202,162,796 202.162.796
Retained earnings 23,876,503 14,660,033
Non-controlling interests (523.,642) (311.872)
225,516,257 216,511,337

Company
Called up share capital 600 600
Share premium 202,162,796 202,162,796
Retained earnings/(accurmnuiated losses) 788,185 (487.243)

Financial risk management

202,951,581

201,676.153

Management consider financial risk management on a Group basis. Management consider that the Group has

the following risks:

» Liquidity risk

» Market nisk

* Foreign cumrency risk
* Credit risk

Liquidity risk

The Group is exposed to liquidity risk which is the risk that the Group will have insufficient cash resources to
meel its obligations as they fall due. Management manage liquidity risk by performing cash flow forecasting in
the operating entities of the Group. Forecasts of liquidity requirements are monitored teo ensure the Group has
sufficient cash to meet its operational needs. Given the ultimate Group structure the liquidity risk is scen as
minimal for the Group. The following are the undiscounted contractual maturities of financial Liabilities of the

Group:

At 31 December 2019:

Due between
Nen derivative financial Due in under 3 months Due between1 Due between 2
Ton ¢e 3 months and 1 vear  and 2 years and 5 years Total
liabilities ;
£ £ £ £ £

Trade and other pavables 31,318,727 23.439.111 - 13,344,526 68,102,364
Current tax habilities - 2,659 499 - - 2,699.499

31,318,727 26,138.610 - 13,344,526 70.801.863
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At 31 December 2018:

Due between

Non derivative financial  DU¢ i under 3 months Due between 1 Due between 2
A 3 months and 1 year  and 2 years and S years Total
liabilities £ £ £ E p
Trade and other payvables 30,751,047 4,644 636 - 7,922,943 43,318,626
Current tax liabilities - 964,039 - - 964,039
Provisions 25641 - - 1,239.476 1,263,117

30,776,688 5,608,675 - 9,162,419 45,547,782

Market risk management

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in market prices. The Group's market risks arise from open positions in (a) foreign currencies, and (b)
assets and liabilities, to the extent that these are exposed to general and specific market movements. However,
the use of this approach does not prevent losses outside these himits in the event of more significant market
movements.

Sensitivities to market risks included below are based on a change in one factor while holding other factors
constant. In practice, this is unlikelv to occur, and changes in some of the factors may be correlated - for
example, changes in interest rate and changes in foreign curency rate.

Foreign exchange risk

The Company and its subsidiaries that operale internationally are exposed to foreign exchange risk, primanly
with respect to the Euro. Foreign exchange nisk arises in respect of those recognised monetary financial assets
and liabilities that are not in the functional currency of the respective company entity.

The Group has various financial assets such as trade and other receivables and cash in short term deposits that
arise directly from its operations. The Group’s principal financial habilities are trade and other payables. The
main purpose of these financial liabilities is to finance the Group’s operations.

Management consider foreign exchange risk on a Group basis rather than on an entity by entity basis. The

functional currency of the Group is British Pounds; the functional currency of the Company and its principal
subsidiaries is British Pounds.

The Group had the following main currency exposure at 31 December 2015:

Assets Liabilities Net exposure
Currency £ £ £
AUD 3,497,784 245,900 3251884
EUR 38,839,282 7,005,437 31,833,843
SEK 604,895 47,230 557.665
SGD 2,698 486 199,933 2,498,553
USD 4,071,078 4,541,981 (470,903)

49711525 12,040,481 37,671,044
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The Group had the following main currency exposure at 31 December 2018:

Assets Liabilities Net exposure
Currency £ £ £
AUD 3,502,352 361,358 3,144,994
EUR 30,886,374 4616800 267269374
SEK 1,593,091 126,815 1.466276
SGD 1,747,795 496,381 1,251414
UsD 4,686,143 3,392,207 1,293,936

42 415,755 8,993 561 33422194

The Group's exposure to foreign currencies held on the balance sheet could affect the Group's profit or loss. At
31 December 2019 if GBP had strengthened by 10% against the above currencies and al} other variables were
held constant, pre-tax profit for the year would have been reduced by £3,767,104 (2018: £3,342.219). This
sensitivity analvsis is considered to be representative of the Group’s position throughout the year.

Credit risk management

Credit nsk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will cause a financial loss for the other party by
failing to discharge an obligation. The Group has no significant concentrations of credit risk. Credit risk arises
from cash and cash equivalents held at banks and trade receivables. The Company’s subsidianes' main
customers are property owning companies. Cash balances are held with high credit quality financial institutions
{BBB+ grade) and the Group has policies to limit the amount of credit exposure to any financial institution. No
tinancial asscts are deemed o be immpaired or past due at year end.

No (2018: no} credit limits were exceeded during the reporting vear, and management docs not expect any
losses for non-performance by counterparties.

5 Revenue

Group
The analvsis of the Group's revenue for the year from continuing operations is as follows:
2019 2018
£ £

Management Fees 84,120,397 84,702,929
Performance Fees 8365254 5,738,487
Development Fees 3,595,641 3,620,371
Transaction Fees 5,178.474 6,391.413

101,259,766 100453200
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6 Administrative expenses

Group
Operating profit is ammived at after charging:
2019 2018
£ £
Statf costs 72,153,528 61,952,507
Depreciation on right-of-use assets 3,845,117 -
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment 1,132,834 1,163,083
Amortisation expense 3272092 3.384.840
Foreign exchange 1,463,505 409.736
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment 10,542 41455
Other administrative expenses 5,962 827 23,227,066
87,840,445 90,178,687
7  Auditors' remuneration
Group
2019 2018
£ £
Audit of the Group financial statements 061,872 434,190
Other fees to auditors
Audit related services 35,607 2,021
Company
2019 2018
£ £
Audit of the Company {inancial statements 104025 71,472

All fees payable to the Company's auditors relate to the audit of the Company's financial statements, so no split
for non-audit services 1s required.
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8 Directors' remuneration

The foltowing emoluments were paid by the Company and the other Group companies in respect of the services
of Directors of the Company and other Group companies:

Group
2019 2018
£ £
Wages and salaries 5,669,787 4,643,155
Other pension costs 95228 112,091
5,765,015 4,755,246

The emoluments paid by the Company and the other Group companies in respect of services provided by the
highest paid Director of the Company and other Group companies were as follows:

2019 2018
£ £
Wages and salaries 3.,549.349 2,020,147
Other pension costs 45916 45916
3.595.265 2,666,063

Company

The cmoluments of M. Sales are paid by Nuveen Administration Limited which makes no (2018: nil) recharge
to the Company. The emoluments of G. Brightman are paid by the parent with no recharge being made to the
Companv. The Directors are directors of a number of fellow subsidiaries and their total emoluments are
included in the aggregate of directors emoluments disclosed in those financial statements.

9 Employee information

Group

The aggregate staff costs were as follows:

2019 2018
£ i
Wages and salaries 60,170,245 51,830,857
Social security costs 3,793.312 3,274,831
Pension costs, defined contribution scheme 2,703,026 2,565,827
Compensation for loss of office 1,405215 793.649
Other emplovee expense 4,081,730 3,487,343
72,153,528 61,952 507
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The average number of persons emploved by the Group during the vear, analysed by category was as follows:

Support & administration
Investment professionals
Business development & marketing

Company

The Company has no emplovees (2018 nil).

10 Finance income

Group

Finance income
Other interest recetvable

Total finance income

11 Finance costs

Group

Finance costs
Other interest expense

Total finance costs

2019 2018
No. No.
195 148
124 119
47 37
366 304
2019 2018
£ £
60216 49,157
60,216 49,157
2019 2018
£ £
317,550 204.708
317,550 204,708

Page 38



DocuSign Envelope 1D: 0C3994B6-4647-401A-BB18-8B9CE974BOSFE

TIAA International Holdings 2 Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2019

12 Income tax expense

a) Analysis of tax charge for the vear

Group
Tax charged in the mcome statement

2019 2018

£ £

Current taxation
UK corporation tax 3,073,772 2,628,646
Foreign tax 70,312 10,760
Total current Income tax 3,744,084 2,639 406
Deferred taxation
Origination and reversal of temporary differences - (127863)
Impact of change in the UK tax rate - 67,854
Current vear deferred tax charge 709,577 (10,929)
Adjustments in relation to prior periods - (6,758)
Total deferred taxation 709,577 (77,698)
Tax expense in the income statement 4453 661 2,561,708
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b) Factors affecting the tax charge for the vear

The difference between the total current tax charge shown above and the amount calculated applying the
standard rate of UK corporation tax to the profit before tax is as follows:

2019 2018
£ £
Protit before tax 17,110,310 12,454 937
Tax on profit on ordinary activities at standard corporation tax rate of
19% (2018: 19%) 3,250,959 2,366,438
Tax effect of:
Increase (decrease) in current tax from adjustment tor prior periods 198,619 (26.873)
Decrease (increase) from effect of revenues exempt from taxation - (52,789)
Increase (decrease) from effect of expenses not deductible in
determining taxable profit (tax loss) 707,530 83.798
Tax decrease from utilisation of tax losses {118,931 _
Increase (decrease) arising from group relief tax reconciliation - 33,188
Increase (decrease) from effect of foreign tax rates (297,292) (321,191)
Increase (decrease) in current tax from unrecognised tax loss or credit - 406,077
Deferred tax expense {credit) relating to changes in tax rates or laws 709,577 68,049
Other tax effects for reconciliation between accounting profit and tax
expense (income) 3,199 3,011
Total tax charge 4,453,661 2.561.70%8
13 Financial instruments
Group
Financial assets
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Carrying value Fair value

31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December

2019 2018 2019 2018
£ £ £ £
Other investments 759,656 630,876 759,656 630,870
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Financial assets at amortised cost

Carrying value Fair value

31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December

2019 2018 2019 2018
£ £ £ £
Cash and cash equivalents 79,968,750 76,020,884 79,968,750 76,020,884
Trade and other receivables 34,673,596 41,855,619 54,673,556 41,855,619
Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities af amortised cost
Carrying value Fair value

31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December

2019 2018 2019 2018
£ £ £ £
Trade and other payables 47,907,691 43,318,626 47,907,691 43318.626
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i4 Property, plant and equipment

Group
Leasehold Office Computer Furniture and Computer
improvements Equipment software fixtures hardware Total
£ £ £ £ ) £
Cost
At I Junuary 2019 258,116 2,724,512 4,588,527 781,280 1,081,617 9,434,058
Additions 713,934 144,757 1,067,561 88,528 446,553 2,461,333
Disposals (12,656) - - (363.414) - (376,070)
Translations (17,317) (33,000} - (30,247) (2,544 (83,108)
At 31 December 2019 242,077 2,836,269 5,656,088 476,153 1,525,626 11,436,213
Accumulated Depreciation
At 1 Janvary 2019 157,961 2,331,686 4,064,231 651,596 919,616 8,125,090
Charge for the year 6(,696 303,777 546,180 68414 153,767 1,132,834
l:luminated on disposal (2,109) - - (363.414) - (365,523}
‘Translations (4.671) (18,570 - {15.936) (1,496) (40,673)
At 31 December 2019 211877 2,616,893 4610411 340,660 1,071,887 8,851,728
Net Book Value
As at 31 December 2019 730,200 219,376 1,045,677 135,493 453,739 2,584,485
As at 31 December 2018 100,155 392,826 524,296 129,690 162,001 1,308,968
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15 Leases
Group

31 December

2019
£

Right-of-use assets
Buildings 16,323 811
Vehicles 2,076,144

18,399,953

Lease liabilitics
Curent 3,375,828
Non-current 16,796,804

20,172,632

Changes in accounting policies

On adoption of IFRS 16, the Group recognised lease liabilities in relation 1o leases which had previously been
classified as operating leases under the principles of the previously applicable standard, IAS 17 Leascs. All
right-of-use assets for property leases were measured on transition as if the new rules had always been applied.
All other right-of-use assets will be measured at the amount of the lease liability on adeption (adjusted for any
prepaid or accrued lease expenses) and discounted using the leases incremental berrowing rate as at 1 January
2019. The nght-of-use assets recognised are primarily office leases and motor vehicles.
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(i) Practical expedients applied

When applying IFRS 16 to leases previously classified as operating leases, the Group used the following
practical expedients:

= applied the exemption not to recognise nght-of-use assets and lLiabilities for leases of low value or for which
the lease term ends within 12 months of the date of initial application, on a lease-by-lease basis

« relied on previous assessments on whether leases are onerous for impairment of right-of-use assets

« excluded initial direct costs from the measurement of the right-of-use asset at the date of imitial application

» used hindsight when determining the lease term if the contract contains options to extend or terminate the
lease.

The Group has also elected not to reassess whether a contract is, or contains a lease at the date of initial
application. Instead, for contracts entered into before the transition date the Group relied on its assessment made
applyving IAS 17 and Interpretation 4 Determining whether an Arrangement contains a Lease.

Under transition rules for leases classified as operating leases, lease liabilities were measured at the present
value of the remaining lease pavments, discounted at cur ultimate controlling party’s (Teachers Insurance and
Annuity Association} borrowing rate as at 1 January 2019. The rates were based upon the Federal Home Loan
Bank (“FHLB”) Systern. The FHLB rates are secured and are a normal course borrowing that Teachers
Insurance and Annuity Association would utilise routinely making it a logical rate for lease application.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, which comprised the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for
any lease pavments made at or before the adoption date, less any lease mcentives received at or before the
adoption date and less any onerous lease provisions (reclassified on the opening Statement of Financial
Posizon).

(ii) Measurement of lease liabilties

2019
£
Operating lease commitments disclosed as at 31 December 2018 9,965,385
Discounted using the incremental borrowing rate at 1 January 2019 (684,313)
Short-term leases not recogmsed as a liability {26,085)
Adjustments as a result of a different treatment of extension ard termination options 9,751,313

19,006,098

Lease liability recognised as at 1 January 2019

Current lease liabilitics 2,658,733
Non-current lease liabilitics 16.347 365
19,006,098

(i) Adjustments recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position on 1 January 2019
« right-of-use-assets - increase by £17.394,985

+ lease liabilities - increase by £19,006,098
* retained earnings - reduce by £1,611,113
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16 Intangibie assets

Group
Investment
management
Goodwill contracts Total
£ £ i

Cost:
At Januarv 2019 124,604,365 41,144,142 165,744,507
Additions 9412 - 9412
At 31 December 2019 124,609,777 41,144,142 165,753,919
Accumulated Amortisation:
At I January 2019 - 24,628,830 24,628 830
Amortisation charge - 3,272,092 3,272.092
At 31 December 2019 - 27,900,922 27.900922
Net Book Value
As at 31 December 2019 124,609,777 13,243 220 137,852 997
As at 31 December 2018 124,600,365 16,515,312 141,115,677

Goodwill
The Group considers itself to have a single cash generating unit to which goodwill is allocated.

The recoverable value of goodwill for the Group at vear end has been determined by a value in use calculation,
using cash flows based on the Group’s 1 vear operating plan approved by the board, and a terminal value for the
pented thereafter. The kev assumptions applied to the Group's 1 vear operating plan are market performance and
net fund flows.

The terminal value has been calculated using a long term growth rate of 3% in perpetuity.

A risk adjusted discount rate of 12.8% (2018: 13.0%) has been applied. The resulting value in use has been
compared with the carnmg value of the Group’s ntangible assets to determine if an impairment 1s required.
Sensitivitv analvsis has been performed by adjusting key assumptions, such as the discount rate and growth rate.
The model continuad to show headroom over the carrying value and thus there were no impairment charges in
2019.

Investment Management Contracts

In accordance with IAS 36 “Impairment of Assets” management has calculated the recoverable amount of
investment management contracts (“IMCs”) via a combination of discounted cash flows and EBITDA valuation
models over the useful economic life of the underlying contracts. The discount rate applied 1s 12.8% and a long
term growth rate of 3% in perpetuity. Sensitivity analysis has been performed by adjusting key assumptions,
such as the discount rate, growth rate and the free cash flows. The model continued to show headroom over the
carryving value and thus there were no impainnent charges in 2019

Amortisation of intangible assets is recognised within administrative expenses.
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17 Investments

Group subsidiaries

All subsidiarv undertakings of the Group as hsted below have share capital consisting solely of ordinary shares.
The proportion of shares held by the Group equates to the proportion of voting rights. All subsidiarv
undertakings have been included in these consolidated financial statements. Details of the group subsidiaries as

at 31 December 2015 are as follows:

Proportion of
ownership interest
and voting rights

Name of subsidiary Principal activity Registered office held
2019 2018

TIAA Intemnational Holding company 150 Aldersgate Street, London, 100% 100%
[oldings 3 Limited ECIA 4AB

United Kingdom
Nuveen Real Estate Holding company 201 Bishopsgate, London, 99% 59%
Limited EC2M 3BN

United Kingdom
Nuveen FCACO Holding company 201 Bishopsgate, London, 99% 99%
Limited EC2M 3BN

United Kingdom
Nuveen Europe Holding company 201 Bishopsgate, London, 99% 99%
Holdings Limited EC2M 3BN

United Kingdom
Nuveen Group Holding company 201 Bishopsgale, London, 99% 9%
Holdings Limited EC2M 3BN

United Kingdom
Nuveen Administration Administration 201 Bishopsgate, London, 99%% 99%
Limited company EC2M 3BN

United Kingdom
Nuveen Real Estate Operating company 201 Bishopsgate, London, 99% 99%
Management Limited EC2M 3BN

United Kingdom
Nuveen Management Operaling company 201 DBishopsgate, London, 99% 99%,
ATFM Limited EC2M 38BN

United Kingdom
TIAA-CREF Asset Operating company 201 Bishopsgate, London, 99% 99%
Management UK EC2M 3BN
Limited United Kingdom
Henderson  European Operating company 4a rue Henri M Schnadt, 934% 93.4%

Retail Property Fund
Management S.a.r.l

L-2530 Gasperich
Luxembourg
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Name of subsidiary

Nuveen Management
Company
{Luxembourg) Nol
Sarl

Nuveen Fund (Europe)
Management S.a.r.l

Nuveen Property
Management  (Jersev)
Limited

Nuveen Fund
Management  (Jersey)
Limited

Nuveen Shopping
Centre Verwaltungs
GmbH

Nuveen Singapore
Private Limited

Nuveen Fund

Management Vanquish
{Jersey) Limited

Nuveen Fund
Management Vanquish
II (Jersey) Lumnited

Nuveen {France) SAS

CLOF II (Neol GP)
Limited

CLOF 1I
Nominee) Limited

(Nol

CLOF
[.imited

I (No2 GP)

Principal activity

Operating company

Operating company

Operating company

Operating company

Dormant

Operating company

Dormant

Dormant

Operating company

Related to CLOF fund

Related to CLOF tund

Related to CLOF fund

Registered office

4a tue Henri M Schnadt,
L-2530 Gasperich
Luxembourg

4a mue Henn M Schnadt,
1.-2330 Gasperich
Luxembourg

11-15 Seaton Place, St Helier,
Jersey, JE4 OQH
United Kingdom

11-13 Seaton Place, St Helier,
Jersey, JE4 OQH
United Kingdom

Bockenheimer T.andstr. 24,
60323 Frankfurt

Germany

50 Raffles Place,
Singapore,  Land
048623

Singapore

#(6-00
Tower,

11-15 Seaton Place, St Helier,
Jersey, JE4 OQH
United Kingdom

11-15 Seaton Place, St Helier,
Jersey, JE4 0QH
United Kingdom

7. rue Scribe — 75009 Pans
France

201 Bishopsgate, London,
EC2M 3BN

United Kingdom

201  Bishopsgate,
EC2M 3BN
United Kingdom

London,

201 Bishopsgate,
EC2M 3BN
United Kingdom

London,
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2019
93.4%

99%

99%

99%

99%

99%

99%

99%

99%

99%

95%

99%

2018

93.4%

99%

99%

99%

99%

99%

99%

99%

99%

99%

99%

99%
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TIAA International Holdings 2 Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2019

Name of subsidiary

CLOF II (Ne3 GP)
Limited

CLOF II{GP) Limited

Matador LP General
Partner Limmted

Nuveen Beteiligung
Verwaltungs GmbH

Nuveen Corporate
Secretarial Services
Limited
Nuveen Operations
Limited

Nuveen Real Estate
(Australia)y Limited

TH RE Australia Reat
Estate Pty. Ltd.

TH RE Melbourne
Retail Holding 1 Ptyv.
Ltd.

TH RE Melbourne
Retail Asset 1 Ptv. Ltd.

Nuveen Real Estate
Nominees Limited

OMP (GP) Limited

Principal activity

Related to CLOF fund

Related to CLOF fund

Dormant

Dormant

Dormmant

Dormant

Operating company

In Liqudation

In liquidation

In Itquidation

Dormant

Related to OMP fund

Registered office

201 Bishopsgate,
EC2M 3BN
United Kingdom

Lendon,

201  Bishopsgate,
EC2M 3BN
United Kingdom

London,

201 Bishopsgate,
EC2M 3BN
United Kingdom

London,

Bockenhemer Landstr. 24,
60323 Frankfurt
Germany

201 Bishopsgate, London,
EC2M 3BN

United Kingdom

201 Bashopsgate,
EC2M 3BN
United Kingdom

London,

44 Martin Place, Sydney, NSW
2000
Australia

44 Martin Place, Sydney, NSW
2000
Australia

44 Martin Place, Sydney, NSW
2000
Australia

44 Martin Place, Sydney, NSW
2000

Australia

201 Bishopsgate, London,
EC2M 3BN

United Kingdom

201  Bishopsgate,
EC2M 3BN
United Kingdom

London,
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99% 99%
99% 99%
99% 99%
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99% 99%



DocuSign Envelope ID: 0C3994B6-4647-401A-BB18-89CE974B0SFE

TIAA International Heldings 2 Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2019

Name of subsidiary Principal activity

UK OM (LP1) (GP) Related to OMP fund

Limited

UK OM({LP1)Limited Related to OMP fund

UK OM (LP2) (GP) Related to OMP fund

Limited

UK OM(LP2)Limited Related to OMP fund

UK OM (LP3) (GP) Related to OMP fund

Limited

UK OM (LP3) Limited Related to OMP fund

TIAA-CREF
Luxembourg S.arl

Operating company

Nuveen Italy Sl Operating company

Islazul General Partner Operating company
S.arl

Anglo-Sino  Henderson Operating company
Investment Consultancy
{Betjing) Co Ltd

Nuveen (Shanghai) Co Operating company
Lid

Registered office

201  Bishopsgate,
EC2M 3BN
United Kmgdom

London,

20t Bishopsgate,
EC2M 3BN
United Kingdom

London,

201 Bishopsgate,
EC2M 3BN
United Kingdom

London,

201 Bishopsgate,
EC2M 3BN
United Kmgdom

London,

201  Bishopsgate,
EC2M 38BN
United Kingdom

London,

201 Bishopsgate,
EC2M 3BN
United Kingdom

London,

4a rue Henri M Schnadt,
L.-253¢ Gasperich

Luxembourg

Piazza Pic X1, 1, 20123 Milan
italy

4a rue Henri M Schnadt,
L-2530 Gaspernich

Luxembourg

Unit 22/23B, 36/F, China
World Tower, No.1l
Jianguomenwai Avenue,
Chaoyang District. 100004
Beijing

China

Suite 955 to Suite 965,9/F, Fco
Citv, No.1788 Nanjing West
Road, Jmg "An District,
Shanghai

China
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TIAA International Holdings 2 Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2019

Name of subsidiary

Nuveen Real Estate
Debt Partners (GP)
Sarl

T-C Lux Investments
GP S.arl

Fnhanced Debt Camy
(GP)S.arl

European Cities
Partnership (GP)S.a.rl

Nuveen Management
Austria GmbH

Nuveen
Finland Oy

Management

ERES APAC II (GP)
Sarl

Nuveen Real Estate
Debt Parmers II (GP)
Sarl

CLOF 1T  Vanguish
Limited
Asia  Pacific

Management S.a.r.l

TH Real Estate Limited

Tokyo Multifamily GP
Pte Ld

Nuveen
Europe S.a.r]

Principal activity

Operating company

Operating company

Operating company

Operating company

Operating company

Operating company

Operating company

Operating company

Related 1o CLOF fund

Dormant

Related  to
Multifamily Fund

Cities Operating company

Tokvo

Alternatives Operating company

Registered office

8 rue Lou Hemmer, 1L-174
Luxembourg

4a rue Henni M Schnadt,
L-2530 Gasperich
Luxembourg

4a rue Henri M Schnadt,
1.-2530 Gasperich
Luxembourg

4a mme Hennm M Schnadt,
L-2530 Gasperich
Luxembourg

Falkestrafle 1. A-1010 Vienna
Austria
Mannerheimintie 20, 00100
Helsinki

Finland

8 rue Lou Hemmer, 1.-174
Luxembourg

8 e Lou Hemmer, 1.-174,
Luxembourg

11-15 Seaton Place, St Helier,
Jersev, JE4 OQH
United Kingdom

4a me Hennn M Schnadt,
1.-2530 Gasperich
Luxembourg

201 Bishopsgate, London,
EC2M 3BN

United Kingdom

8 Robinson Road #14-00 ASO
Building
Singapore

4a rue Henri M Schnadt,
1.-2530 Gasperich

Luxembourg
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TIAA International Holdings 2 Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2019

Proportion of
ownership interest
and voting rights

Name of subsidiary Principal activity Registered office held
2019 2018

Nuveen Asset Operating company d4a rue lenri M Schnadt, 99% 99%
Mauanagement  FEurope 1L.-2530 Gasperich
sarl T.uxembourg
Nuveen Real Estate Operating company FaikestraBe 1, A-1010 Vienna 99% 99%
Services GmbH Austna
(Austria)
ERES Europe I (GP} Operating company 4A, rue Henri Schnadt, L-2530  99%/9%% 0%
Sarl Luxembourg

Luxembourg
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TIAA International Holdings 2 Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2019

Subsidiaries exempt from audit

The following subsidiary undertakings are exempt from the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 relating to
the audit of accounts under section 475A (section 479A(2)Xd)).

Each member of the subsidiary undertakings has consented to an audit exemption in respect of the financial vear
given below.

The parent guarantees all outstanding liabilities to which the subsidiary undertaking is subject to at the end of
the financial vear to which the guarantee relates.

For vears ended 31/03/2020

OMP (GP) Limited - SC344934
UK (OM) (LP1) (GP) Limited - 06603589
UK OMP (LP2) (GP) Limited - 06605594
UK OM (LP3) (GP) Limited - 06605608
UK OM (LP1) Limited - 0660558

UK OM (LP2) Limited - 066053579

UK OM (LP3) Limited - 066035583

For years ended 30/09/2420

CLOF 11 (GP) Limited - SC376961
CLOF I (Nci GP) Limited - 07307366

CLOF 1 (No2 GP) Limited - 07307365
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TIAA International Holdings 2 Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2019

The following subsidiary undertakings are entitled to exemption from audil under section 480 of the Companies
Act 2006,

Each member of the substdiary undertakings has not required the subsidiary to obtain an audit of its individual
accounts in accordance with section 476 of the Companies Act 2006.

Furthermore, these subsidiary undertakings are exempt from the requirements of the Companies Act 2006
relating to the preparation and filling of individual accounts under section 394A and 448A respectively.

The Parent guarantees all outstanding liabilities to which the subsidiary undertaking is subject to at the end of
the financial vear to which the guarantee relates.

For vears ended 31/12/2019

Nuveen Real Estate Nominees Limited - 06449110
Matador LP General Partmer Limited - SC286874

Nuveen Corporate Secretarial Services Limited - 08938611
Nuveen Operations Limited - 09084229

TH Real Estate Limited - 9624720
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TIAA International Holdings 2 Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2019

Company

Subsidiaries £

Cost:

At 1 January 2019 202,163,396
At 31 December 2015 202,163,396
Net Book Value

At 31 December 2019 202,163,396
At 31 December 2018 202,163,396

Group associates
Details of the Group associates as at 31 December 2019 are as follows:

Propertion of
ownership interest
and voting rights

held
Name of associate Principal activity Registered office 2019 2018
AREFM (BVT) Limited Investment management British Virgin Islands 50% 7 50%  50% /7 50%
company
Nuveen Immobilien Investment management Germany 50%/ 50% 50%/50%

Gmbll (formally HGI company
Immobilien GmbH}

Interests in associates are measured using the equity method.

The following table shows the assets, liabilities and equity of the associated entities at the reporting dafe. All
associated entities have the same reporting date:

31 December 31 December

2019 2018
£ £
Assets 201,290 210,223
Liabilities (74,351) (76,069)
Equity {126,939} (134.154)
(Loss)¥Profit before tax (2,635) 48.574
Movement on interests in associates can be summarised as follows:
2019 2018
£ £
Opening balance 136,698 116,936
Investment in associated entity - 10
Translations 24) 4
Share of (loss)/profit for the year (1,372) 19,748
Transfers to other investments {3,576) -
131,726 136,698
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TIAA International Holdings 2 Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2019

18 Other investments
31 December 31 December

2019 2018
£ £
Unquoted
Debt securities 759.656 630.876

The investment in debt securities classified for sale relates to investments in Asia Pacific Cities Fund (£688,238
(2018: 625,876)), Tokvo Multifamily (£54,716), China Outlet Mall Fund (£8,616), and LOOP III (£8 086)
(2018: TIAA Henderson Real Estate Enhanced Debt Fund SCSp - SIF (£3,000)).

These investments are fair valued with cost deemed 10 be the best estimate of fair valuc as at the Statement of
Financial Position date, are included in fair value category level 3, and are denominated in the following
currencies:

31 December 31 December

2019 2018
£ £
Australian Dollars 627,359 625876
United States Dollars 77.581 -
Japanese Yen 54,716 -
British Pounds - 5,000
759.656 630,876

The table below shows the movement in other investments during the vear. The additions in 2019 relate to
nvestments made in Asia Pacific Cities Fund (£71.980), Tokyo Multifamily (£54,716) and LOOP 1II (£8.291).

31 December 31 December

2019 2018
£ £
Opening balance 630,876 5,000
Additions 134,987 630,968
Net fair value movements through profit or loss 20,154 -
Translations (26,361) (5.092)
759,656 630,876
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TIAA International Heldings 2 Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2019

19 Trade and other receivables

Group Company
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2019 2018 2019 2018
£ £ £ £

Current
Trade receivables 13,530,871 13,932,119 - -
Receivables from Group
managed funds 1,214,241 670,605 - -
Accrued income 36,687,818 25,699,103 - -
Prepayments 590,750 600,708 - -
Other receivables 2,511,867 R807.237 - -

34.335.547 41,709,772 - -
Non-current
Long term loans 138,051 145849 - -

54,673,598 41,855,621 - -

The fair value of those trade and other receivables classified as financial instrument loans and receivables are
disclosed in the financial instruments note.

All non-current receivables are due within 10 vears of the reporting date.
The Group's exposure to credit and market risks, including impairments and allowances for credit losses.

relating to trade and other receivables is disclosed in the financial risk management and impairment note.

The amounts owed by Group undertakings are unsecured, interest free, have no fixed date of repayments and are
pavable on demand.

20 Deferred tax assets

A deferred taxation asset has been recogmised in respect of the temporary timing difference between
depreciation charged in the financial statements and the capital allowances claimed in the United Kingdom and
emplover pension contnbutions, short term temporary differences and tax losses carried forward. Movements in
the deferred taxation asset are all charged through the Statement of Profit or Loss.
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TIAA International Holdings 2 Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2019

Group - Deferred tax asset

Provivion for deferred tax

Tax gains carried forward and other deductions

Movement in provision:
Provision at start of vear

Deferred tax expensed in the Consolidated statement of comprehensive

income for the vear

Provision at end of vear

31 December 31 December
2019 2018
£ £
276,770 986 347
986,347 908,649
(709,577) 77.693
276,770 086,347

The deferred tax asset of £276,770 (2018: £986,347) has arisen as a result of the origination of temporary
differences in relation to tax losses carried forward to the extent that the realisation of the related tax benefit
through future taxable profits is probable.

21 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash at bank

22 Called up share capital

Group and company

Authorised

Ordinarv shares of £1 each

Details of share capital

Issued, called up and fully paid share
capital of £1 each

Issued. called up and unpaid share
capital of £1 each

Group Company
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2019 2018 2019 2018
£ £ £ £
79,968,750 76,020,884 933,937 1,088,695
31 December 31 December
2619 2018
No. £ No. £
600 600 600 600
31 December 31 December
2019 2018
No. £ No. £
560 500 500 500
100 160 100 100
600 600 600 600
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2019

Share premium

Group and company
31 December 31 December

2019 2018
£ £
Share premium account 202,162,796 202,162,796

24 Parent and ultimate parent undertaking

The company's immediate parent is Nuveen Real Estate Global, LLC. These financial statements are available
upon request from

730 Third Avenue

New York

NY10017

The ultimate controlling partv is Teachers Insurance and Annuity Association.

Relationship between entity and parents
The parent of the largest group in which these {inancial statements are consolidaled is Teachers Insurance and
Annuity Association, incorporated in United States.

The address of Teachers Insurance and Annuity Association is:
730 Third Avenue

New York

NY 10017

The parent of the smallest group in which these financial statements are consolidated is TH Real Estate Global,
LLC, incorporated in United States.

The address of TH Real Estate Global, LLC is:
730 Third Avenue

New York

NY 10017

25 Non-controiling interests

Set out below is summarised financial information for each subsidiary that has non-controlling interests that are
material to the Group. The amounts disclosed for each subsidiary are before inter-company eliminations.
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TIAA International Holdings 2 Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2019

Henderson Global Investors

Nuveen Real Estate Limited

Immobilien Austria GmbH

2019 2018 2019 2018
£ £ £ £
Non-current assets 210,183,526 210,183,527 6.512 63,177
Current assets 7,924,502 8,734,594 2,193,891 1,289,383
218,108,028 218,918,121 2,200,403 1,352,760
Current liabilities - 797,410 53,336 885,739
Net assets 218,108,028 218,120,711 2,147,067 467,021
Profit/{loss) before tax 12,682 (89,317) 1,627,630 411,819
Accumulated non-controlling interest 452650 358,784 - 211,101
Movements in non-controlling interests during the year can be summarised as follows:
2019 2018
£ £
Opening balance (311,872) (444,376}
Non-controlling share of comprehenstve profit for the vear 615,516 275,170
Dividends paid to non-controllmg interests during the vear (215,592) (142,666)
Decrease in derecognition of non-controlling interests (611,694) -
Closing balance £523,642) (311,872)

In December 2019, the Group acquired the remaining 35% of the issued shares of Nuveen Management Austria
GmbH for £843.173. Immediately prior to the purchase, the carrying amount of the 35% non-controlling interest
in Nuveen Management Austria GmbH was £611,694. The Group recognised a decrease in non-conirolling
interests of £611,694 and a decrease in equity atiributable to owners of the parent of £231,479.

26 Trade and other payables

Group Company
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2019 2018 2019 2018
£ £ £ £

Current
Accrued expenscs 32,376,337 31,653,139 145,751 95,591
Other payables 2,186,874 3,742 545 1 1,480 347

34.563.211 35,395,684 145,752 1,575,938
Non-current
Accruals and deferred income 350,186 759,687 - -
Employee long term
pertormance plan 12,994,340 7,163,256 - -

13,344,526 7.922.943 - -
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TIAA International Holdings 2 Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2019

The fair value of the trade and other pavables classified as financial instruments are disclosed in the financial
instruments note.

The Group's exposure to market and liquidity msks, including maturity analysis, related to trade and other
payables is disclosed in the financial risk management and impairment note.

Amounts owed 1o related parties are unsectured, interest free. have no fixed date of repayment and are pavable
on demand.

27 Provisions

Group
2019
£

At 1 January 2019 1,265,117
Additional provisions 19.862
Performance fee provisions released (1,234.593)
Decrease due to foreign exchange differences (8,343)
At 31 December 2019 22,041
Current habilities 22 041

28 Related party transactions

Balances and transactions between the Company and its subsidiaries, which are related parties of the Company,
have been eliminated on consolidation and are not disclosed in the Group sections of this note. All trading
balances do not bear interest and have no {ixed term for repavment. Long term balances do not incur interest and
repayment will take place once the associated entity starts to make sufficient operating profit to facilitate this, as
such it is not possible 10 predict when repayment will occur.

The following amounts were payable at vear end:
31 Pecember 31 December

2019 2018
£ £
Amounts (payable to) parent company:
Nuveen International Holdings L1.C - (1.455.446)
- (1,455,446)
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2019

31 December 31 December
2019 2018
£ £
Amounts receivable from/(payable to) other related parties:
Nuveen Alternative Advisors LLC 12,975,760 -
TIAA Group ple 12,250 (24.900)
Nuveen Japan Limited 6,329 -
Nuveen UK Limited (333,190 -
Nuveen Hong Kong Limited (56,624) (107,591
Nuveen UK Limited 6216 58,742
TIAA Intemational Holdings | Limited 1,250 1,250
Westchester Group of Europe Limited - 12,600
Gresham Investment Management London LLC - 8,400
12,611,991 (51,499)

The amounts outstanding are unsecured, carry no interest and will be settled in cash. No guarantees have been
given or received. No provisions have been made for doubtful debts in respect of the amounis owed by related

parties.

29 Commitments

Group

Other than the commitments under leases disclosed in note 15, the Group and Companv have no further

commitments.
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TIAA International Holdings 2 Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2019

30 Lecases

Group
Non-cancellable operating leases

The Group leases various offices, vehicles and printers under non-cancellable operating leases expiring within
six months to eight years. The leases have varying terms, escalation clauses and renewal rights. On renewal, the
terms of the leases are renegotiated.

From 1 January 2019, the group has recognised right-of-use assets for these leases, except for shortterm and
low-value leases, see note 15 for further information.

31 December 31 December

2019 2018
£ £
Not later than one vear 635417 2,781.307
Later than one vear but not more than five vears 147187 7,184,078
212,604 9,965,385

31 Post Balance Sheet Events

The outbreak of the novel coronavirus (also known as COVID 19) in many countries is rapidly evolving and the
socio-economi¢ impact is unprecedented. It has been declared as a global pandemic and is having a major
impact on econemies and financial markets. The efficacy of government measures will materially influence the
length of economic disruption, but it is probable we will see a period of slow economic growth or even
TSCESS1011.

However, there is unlikely to be a company that is completely immune from the consequences of the outbreak
and the Directors consider that the novel coronavirus presents increased uncertainty and risk with respect to the
Company's performance and financial results.

Management has modelled various going concem scenarios to assess the potential impact on the future financial
results of the Group.

To assess the potential impact of Covid-19, Management has:

*  Produced reforecasts which consider the effects of both long-term and short-term market turmoil, limited
transactional activity and a reduction in Group AUM. The Group base case scenario mvolves a reassessment
of net flows and assumes that Real Estate valuations will expenience the following reductions:

= Retail - 20%

* Industrial - 0%
+ Office - 10%

» Housing - 5%
* Debt-0%

Potential cost savings have also been considered within the Group’s variable cost base. Such initiatives would
ensure that the underlving profitability of the group is maintained.
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2019

» Reassessed the Group’s Goodwill position bv applying the latest base case reforecast (see above) to analyse
whether the carrving value of goodwill remains supported by Group profitability. From this analysis there is
still significant headroom of £80.0m. To recognise an impairment to Goodwill, the Group’s forecasted
profitability would have to fall bv 38% per annum over the next 5 vears,

From assessing these impacts, Management believe there are no going concern issues but will ensure the
business continues to manage its cost base, and will work closely with our ultimate parent TIAA to ensure the
Group 1s able to manage any future external pressures.

Ne other events occurred after the balance sheet date that have a matenial impact on the financial statements.
The Directors have not received any further information as at the approval date which has not been reflected in
the financial statcments as presented.
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TIAA International Holdings 2 Limited

Historical Cost Basis U.S. GAAP (unaudited)

The consolidated financial statements of the Company are prepared in accordance with IFRS, as adopted by the
European Union (“IFRS™) which differs in certain respects from accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America (*US GAAP”). The unaudited tables below summanise the results under IFRS and the
historical cost basis of accounting of US GAAP for vear ended 31 December 2019,

IFRS U.S. GAAP
2019 2018 2019 2018
£ £ £ £
Non-current assets 160,143,640 144,324,415 160,143,640 144,324 415
Current assets 134,536,258 117,734,925 134,536,258 117,734,925
Total assets 294,679,898 262,059,340 294,679,898 262,059,340
Non-current iabilities 30,141,330 5,162,419 30,141,330 9.162.419
Current liabilities 39,022,311 36,385,364 39,022,311 36,385,304
Total liabilities 69,163,641 45,547,783 69,163,641 45,547,783
Net assets 225,516,257 216,511,557  225516,257 216,511,557
Profit before tax 17,110,310 12,454,937 17,110,310 12,454,937
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